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18 U.S.C. 88 982, 1341,
1344, 1349, 1512, 1956,

and 2;
31 U.S.C. 88 5317 and 5324

| NDI CTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting at Trenton, charges:
COUNT ONE
(Conspiracy To Commit Mail Fraud)
At all tinmes relevant to Count One of this Indictnent:

A. Backgr ound

1. Aut onobi | e insurance in New York and New Jersey

i ncludes different types of coverage. “Property danage liability

coverage” covers clains submtted by third parties whose

autonobil e is danaged as a result of a collision caused by the

insured. This coverage is also sonetines referred to as “third-

party property damage” coverage. “Collision coverage” covers



damage to the insured’ s vehicle as a result of a collision with
anot her vehicle or an object, regardless of who is at fault.
This coverage is also sonetines referred to as “first-party
property danmage” coverage. “Conprehensive coverage” is a type of
aut onobi | e i nsurance coverage that covers damage to an i nsured
vehicle that is not caused by a collision, such as damage caused
by a catastrophic event. Property damage |liability coverage,
collision coverage, and conprehensive coverage are referred to
collectively in this Indictnment as “property danage coverage,”
and clainms submtted under those coverages are referred to as
“property damage clains.” In addition to covering damage to a
vehi cl e, property damage coverage nmay al so cover certain types of
rel ated expenses, such as rental car charges, tow ng charges, and
storage charges inposed by a repair facility.

2. The follow ng were all insurance conpani es that offered
aut onobi | e i nsurance, including property damge coverage, to
busi nesses and/or individual consumers in New Jersey and/ or New
York: A.l.U. Insurance Conmpany (“A. 1.U"); Allstate |Insurance
Conmpany (“Allstate”); Chubb Insurance Conpany (“Chubb”); CNA
| nsurance Conpany, a/k/a Continental Casualty Conpany (“CNA");
Gal | agher Bassett Insurance Conpany (“Gall agher Bassett”);
Gover nment Enpl oyees I nsurance Conpany (“GEICO); Hi gh Point
| nsurance Conpany (“Hi gh Point”); Intrepid Insurance Conpany
(“I'ntrepid’); New Jersey Manufacturers |Insurance Conpany (“NJM);

State Farm | nsurance Conpany (“State Farni); Traveler’s Insurance



Conmpany (“Traveler’s”); and United Financial Adjusting Conpany,
d/ b/a Canbridge Integrated Services Goup (“Canbridge”). The
aut onobi | e i nsurance conpani es referenced in this paragraph are
referred to collectively as “the autonobile insurers.”

B. The Def endants

3. Def endant JOHN V. COTONA, a/k/a “John Cotone,” al/k/a
“John Bruno,” was a resident of Monnmouth County, New Jersey.
Def endant JOHN V. COTONA operated Perfect Touch Auto Body
(“Perfect Touch”), an autonobile body shop |located at 29 Pear
Street, Red Bank, New Jersey. 1In connection with the false and
fictitious autonobile insurance clains nade as a part of this
conspiracy, defendant JOHN V. COTONA submtted fal se and
fictitious clains for paynment to the autonobile insurers, falsely
cl ai m ng that autonobile body work had been perfornmed at Perfect
Touch. Defendant JOHN V. COTONA recei ved paynents that the
aut onobil e insurers mailed to Perfect Touch in paynent of these
false and fictitious clains.

4. Def endant VI NCENT G COTONA, a/k/a “Vincent Cotone,”
al k/a “Vincent Bruno,” was the brother of defendant JOHN V.
COTONA, and resided in New York. Defendant VINCENT G COTONA
operated a restaurant and night club |located at 160 South Street,
New Yor k, New York, that used the nanme “Villa Rotone.” Defendant
VI NCENT G COTONA recruited associates to participate in the
conspiracy and submt false and fictitious property danage cl ai ns

regarding their vehicles. In addition, defendant VINCENT G



COTONA nade false and fictitious property danage clai ns regardi ng
vehicles registered in the nanmes of business entities he
control | ed.

5. Def endant DANI EL HANLEY was an associ ate of defendants
JOHN V. COTONA and VINCENT G COTONA, and resided in New York
Def endant DANI EL HANLEY nade fal se and fictitious property danage
cl aims regardi ng his personal vehicle.

6. Def endant RALPH A. STAFFA was an associ ate of defendant
JOHN V. COTONA, and resided, at various tinmes, in Mnnouth
County, New Jersey, and in Florida. Defendant RALPH A. STAFFA
made fal se and fictitious property damage clains to his insurance
conpany, claimng that he hit vehicles owned by co-defendants,
co-conspirators, and conpanies they controll ed.

7. Def endant ENRI CO Pl POLI was an associ ate of defendant
JOHN V. COTONA, and resided in Monnouth County, New Jersey.
Def endant ENRI CO PI POLI nade fal se and fictitious property danage
clainms to his insurance conpany, claimng that his vehicle hit
vehi cl es owned by co-defendants, co-conspirators, and conpanies
t hey controll ed.

8. Def endant MATTHEW FELDVAN was an associ at e of
def endants JOHN V. COTONA and VI NCENT G COTONA, and resided in
New Yor k. Defendant MATTHEW FELDMAN nede fal se and fictitious
property damage clains regarding a vehicle he owned.

9. Def endant PRAVANAND SULI AMAN was an associ ate of

def endants JOHN V. COTONA and VI NCENT G COTONA, and resided in



New Yor k. Defendant PRAVANAND SULI AMAN nade fal se and fictitious
property damage clains regardi ng vehicl es he owned.

10. Defendant SHAWN P. STREBERCER was an associ ate of
def endant JOHN V. COTONA, and resided in Mnnouth County, New
Jersey. Defendant SHAWN P. STREBERGER owned and operated Shawn’s
Auto Repair, LLC (“Shawn’s”), an autonobile repair shop | ocated
at 39 Pearl Street, Red Bank, New Jersey. Shawn’s was listed as
the repair shop for a vehicle involved in a false and fictitious
property damage claim Defendant SHAWN P. STREBERCER al so nmade
false and fictitious property danage clains regarding a vehicle
he owned.

D. Uni ndi ct ed Co- Conspirators

11. Co-conspirator V.G was the wife of defendant JOHN
COTONA, and resided in Monmouth County, New Jersey. V.G was the
regi stered owner of vehicles involved in the false and fictitious
i nsurance cl ainms made during the course of the conspiracy.

12. Co-conspirator A.C. was the brother of defendants JOHN
V. COTONA and VI NCENT G COTONA, and resided in Mnnouth County,
New Jersey. A C operated Certified Auto Collision, Inc.
(“Certified”), an autonobile body shop in Brooklyn, New York.
Certified made clainms for paynent arising fromfal se and
fictitious insurance clainms. A C. and a conpany he controlled
al so owned vehicles involved in false and fictitious insurance

claims made during the course of the conspiracy.



13. Co-conspirator MM was a resident of New York. At
various times, MM had a ronmantic relationship with defendant
JOHN V. COTONA. MM nmmde a false and fictitious insurance
claim claimng that her vehicle struck a vehicle operated by
def endant VINCENT G COTONA and regi stered to a conpany he
control | ed.

The Conspiracy

14. Fromin or about January 2001, to in or about June
2005, in Monnouth County, in the District of New Jersey, and
el sewhere, the defendants,

JOHN V. COTONA
al k/a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/a “John Bruno,”
VI NCENT G COTONA
a/ k/a “Vincent Cotone,”
a/k/a “Vincent Bruno,”
DANI EL HANLEY,
RALPH A. STAFFA,
ENRI CO PI PQOLI
MATTHEW FELDNMAN,
PRAVANAD SULI AMAN, and
SHAVWN P. STREBERGER,

did knowingly and willfully conspire and agree with each ot her,
wth V.G, AC, MM, and with others, to devise and intend to
devise a schene and artifice to defraud the autonobile insurers
by nmeans of materially false and fraudul ent pretenses,
representations, and prom ses, nanely, by submtting materially
false and fictitious autonobile insurance clains to the
autonobil e insurers, and did knowi ngly cause to be placed in a

post office and authorized depository of mail, and cause to be



delivered thereon, certain nmail matter, namely, checks in paynent
of these materially false and fictitious autonobile insurance
clainms, to be sent and delivered by the United States Postal
Service, and by any private and conmercial interstate carrier,
and did take and receive therefrom such mail matter, contrary to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341.

Obj ect of the Conspiracy

15. It was the object of the conspiracy for the defendants
and their co-conspirators to enrich thensel ves by fal sely
creating the appearance that autonobile accidents had occurred,
involving multiple vehicles under their control, and naking fal se
and fictitious property damage clains to the autonobile insurers
for damage all egedly suffered by those vehicles.

Means and Met hods of the Conspiracy

16. Among the neans and net hods enpl oyed by the defendants
and their co-conspirators to carry out the conspiracy and effect
its unlawmful object were those set forth in Paragraphs 17 through
25 bel ow.

17. It was part of the conspiracy that the defendants and
their co-conspirators set up and controlled the foll ow ng
busi ness entities: Anerican Advantage Corp.; Anotoc Realty Corp.
Blue Point Equities; Buy Rite Enterprise Corp.; C&C Auto Body
Corp.; Manatone Hol di ngs; Metatron Rel ocation Services, Inc.;

Ni tron Commrercial Ceaning, Inc.; Cceanside Equities; Paranount

Properties; Tribeca Consulting Inc.; Verrazano Auto, Inc.; Villa



Rotone Inc.; and Vincenzo Restaurant Corp. (collectively the
“controlled entities”).

18. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
defendants and their co-conspirators reported accidents to the
aut onobi l e i nsurers when, in fact, they had staged the accidents,
or the accidents had never taken place (the “reported
acci dents”).

19. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
defendants and their co-conspirators intentionally damaged
vehi cl es, or nmade property damage clains relating to vehicles
with pre-existing damage, to create the inpression that the
vehi cl es had sustained damage in the reported accidents.

20. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
defendants and their co-conspirators nmade clains for multiple
vehi cl es under their control arising out of a single reported
accident, including vehicles that they had registered in the
nanes of the controlled entities.

21. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
def endants and their co-conspirators falsely reported to police
departnments in New York City and Red Bank, New Jersey, that the
reported accidents involved a vehicle that struck one or nore
par ked vehicles, or a vehicle that rear-ended another vehicle.

22. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
def endants and their co-conspirators made and caused to be made

materially false and fictitious property damage clains to the



aut onobil e insurers arising out of reported accidents, including

but not limted to the foll ow ng:

Al l eged Date of Accident Alleged Location | nsur er (s)
August 16, 2001 Queens, NY CNA
Sept enber 11, 2001 New Yor k, NY Al l state
March 26, 2002 New Yor k, NY State Farm
April 2, 2002 Staten Island, NY CNA
Cct ober 30, 2002 New Yor k, NY All state
Decenber 3, 2002 Br ookl yn, NY Traveler’s
Decenber 5, 2002 New Yor k, NY State Farm A 1. U.
Decenber 27, 2002 New Yor k, NY Canbri dge
April 4, 2003 Staten Island, NY Allstate
August 14, 2003 New Yor k, NY GEl CO
Sept enber 6, 2003 New Yor k, NY Al |l state
Novenber 2, 2003 New Yor k, NY State Farm
Decenber 6, 2003 New Yor k, NY CGEl CO
January 30, 2004 Red Bank, NJ Hi gh Poi nt
March 9, 2004 Br ookl yn, NY State Farm
March 19, 2004 Br ookl yn, NY Chubb
May 17, 2004 Red Bank, NJ CGEl CO
Sept enber 18, 2004 New Yor k, NY CEl CO
Sept enber 28, 2004 Red Bank, NJ Al |l state
Cct ober 20, 2004 New Yor k, NY NIM
Novenber 20, 2004 Red Bank, NJ State Farm
Novenber 20, 2004 Red Bank, NJ Gal | agher Bassett/
Intrepid
23. It was further part of the conspiracy that the

def endants and their co-conspirators took the vehicles allegedly
involved in the reported accidents to Perfect Touch, Certified,
Shawn’ s, and ot her autonobile body and repair shops, for alleged
repairs.

24. 1t was further part of the conspiracy that the
def endants and their co-conspirators submtted and caused to be
submtted to the autonobile insurers false and fictitious
i nvoi ces, tow ng and storage bills, rental car receipts, and

ot her fraudul ent docunents relating to property damage cl ai ns



arising out of the reported accidents.

25. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
defendants and their co-conspirators caused the autonobile
insurers to make in excess of $1 million in paynents on fal se and
fictitious property damage clains arising out of the reported
acci dents.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1349.
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COUNTS TWO THROUGH FI VE

(Mai | Fraud)

1. Paragraphs 1 through 13, 17 through 21, 23, and 24 of
Count One are re-alleged and incorporated herein.

2. On or about the dates set forth below, in Mnnouth
County, in the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere, the
def endants set forth below, did know ngly and wilfully devise and
intend to devise a schenme and artifice to defraud the autonobile
i nsurers by obtaining noney and property from said autonobile
insurers, by means of materially fal se and fraudul ent pretenses,
representations, and prom ses, nanely, by neans of nmaterially
false and fictitious property danage clains, and, for the purpose
of executing and attenpting to execute the schene and artifice to
defraud, did know ngly cause to be placed in a post office and
aut hori zed depository of nmail, and cause to be delivered thereon,
certain mail matter, to be sent and delivered by the United
States Postal Service, and by any private and comerci al
interstate carrier, and did take and receive therefrom such mai

matter, as foll ows:

Count | Def endants Dat e Descri pti on of
Mai | i ng
2 JOHN V. COTONA and Novenmber 22, [Allstate check in
VI NCENT G COTONA 2002 t he anmpbunt of

$18, 625. 53, payabl e
to Villa Rotone and
mai |l ed to Perfect
Touch.

-11-




3 JOHN V. COTONA, Cct ober 5, Al l state check in

RALPH A. STAFFA, and | 2004 amount of $14, 963. 65
SHAWN P. STREBERGER payabl e to and
mailed to V.G
4 JOHN V. COTONA and Decenber 22, [State Farm check in
ENRI CO PI POLI 2004 t he anpbunt of

$19, 524. 85, payabl e
to and nmailed to
Bl ue Point Equities

5 JOHN V. COTONA, January 4, Gal | agher Bassett
DANI EL HANLEY, 2005 check in the anmount
and RALPH A. STAFFA of $28, 255. 02

payabl e to and
mai | ed to Paranount
Properties

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341

and 2.
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COUNT SI X
(Conspiracy to Launder Mboney)

1. Paragraphs 1 through 5, 8, 9, and 17 through 25 of
Count One are re-alleged and incorporated herein.

2. At all times relevant to Count Six of this Indictnent,
Commerce Bank, N. A (“Commerce”), Two River Conmunity Bank (“Two
River”), and North Fork Bank (“North Fork”) were financi al
institutions, as that termis defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 20, that maintained branch banking | ocations in New
Jersey and New YorKk.

3. Fromin or about October 2001, to in or about June
2005, in Monnouth County, in the District of New Jersey, and
el sewhere, the defendants,

JOHN V. COTONA
a/ k/'a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/'a “John Bruno,”
VI NCENT G. COTONA
al k/a “Vincent Cotone,”
a/ k/a “Vincent Bruno,”
DANNY HANLEY,
MATTHEW FELDVAN, and
PRAVANAD SULI AMAN,
did knowingly and willfully conspire and agree with one anot her
and with others to conduct financial transactions which in fact
i nvol ved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, nanely mai
fraud, contrary to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341,
knowi ng that the transactions were designed in whole and in part

to conceal and disguise the nature, |ocation, source, ownership,

and control of the proceeds of mail fraud, contrary to Title 18,
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United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i).

Obj ect of the Conspiracy

4. It was the object of the conspiracy for the defendants
and their co-conspirators to conceal and disguise their interest
in the proceeds of mail fraud by negotiating checks that they
received fromthe autonobile insurers (the “proceeds checks”) by
cashi ng them agai nst and depositing theminto bank accounts, in
their own nanes, in the names of their children, and in the names
of business entities they controlled, and then w thdraw ng the
proceeds by witing checks, w thdrawi ng cash, and transferring
proceeds to other accounts they controll ed.

Means and Met hods of the Conspiracy

5. Anmong t he means and net hods enpl oyed by the defendants
and their coconspirators to carry out the conspiracy and effect
its unlawmful object were those set forth in Paragraphs 6 through
9 bel ow.

6. It was part of the conspiracy that the defendants
pl ayed the following roles in the conspiracy:

a. Def endant JOHN V. COTONA, a/k/a “John Bruno,”
a/ k/a “John Cotone,” controlled the day-to-day activity in
approxi mately sixteen (16) accounts at Conmmerce, including
accounts in his own name (5 accounts), and accounts in various
busi ness nanes. Defendant JOHN V. COTONA used these accounts, as
wel | as an account at Two River in the name of “Perfect Touch

Collision Center,” to negotiate proceeds checks and facilitate

-14-



the withdraw of proceeds fromthe banking system |In addition,
def endant JOHN V. COTONA was an aut horized signer on an account
at North Fork in the nane of “Vincenzo Restaurant Corp.,” that
received transfers of proceeds fromaccounts that defendant JOHN
V. COTONA control | ed at Conmerce.

b. Def endant VI NCENT G. COTONA controlled the day-to
day activity in the Vincenzo Restaurant Corp. account at North
Fork, and used that account to pay expenses such as rent for his
restaurant at 160 South Street, New York, New York. Defendant
VI NCENT G COTONA was al so an authorized signer on and controlled
the day-to-day activities in an account at North Fork in the nane
of his daughter, N C, which was used to negotiate proceeds
checks. In addition, defendant VINCENT G COTONA pai d persona
expenses, including Little League fees for his children, out of
proceeds that were deposited into an account that his brother,
JOHN V. COTONA, controlled at Commerce.

C. Def endant DANI EL HANLEY endor sed proceeds checks
that were negotiated at North Fork, and received proceeds from an
account that defendant JOHN V. COTONA controlled at Conmerce.

d. Def endant MATTHEW FELDVAN was t he aut hori zed
si gner on an account at Commerce that was used to negotiate a
proceeds check, and negoti ated proceeds checks agai nst an account
he controlled at North Fork.

e. Def endant PRAVANAND SULAI MAN was t he aut hori zed

signer on two accounts at Comrerce that were used to negotiate
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proceeds checks, and negoti ated proceeds checks agai nst an

account he controlled at North Fork.

7. It was further part of the conspiracy that the

def endants and their co-conspirators opened and caused to be

opened accounts in the nanes of their children,

of business entities they controlled,

to the follow ng:

Nane on Account

Aut hori zed Si gner

i ncl udi ng but not

Dat e Opened

and in the names

limted

Bank

Perfect Touch A B.

Vi ncenzo Rest aur ant
N. C.

Perfect Touch Coll.
Anot oc Realty

Ameri can Advant age
Ccean Side Equities
Verrazano Auto

Buy Rite Enterprise
Met atron Rel ocati on
Perfect Touch A B.

Bl ue Point Equities

8. It was further

JOHN V. COTONA
JOHN V. COTONA

VI NCENT G COTONA
JOHN V. COTONA
“‘D.R”

“J.G”

“F.C.”

MATTHEW FELDVAN
‘“F.M”

PRAVANAND SULAI MAN
JOHN V. COTONA
PRAVANAND SULAI MAN

09/ 17/ 2001
12/ 15/ 2001
04/ 02/ 2002
01/ 10/ 2003
03/ 28/ 2003
07/ 30/ 2003
10/ 15/ 2003
10/ 29/ 2003
11/ 06/ 2003
11/ 06/ 2003
12/ 09/ 2003
12/ 09/ 2004

Commer ce
Nort h Fork
Nort h Fork
Two Ri ver
Commer ce
Conmer ce
Commer ce
Conmer ce
Commer ce
Conmer ce
Commer ce
Conmer ce

part of the conspiracy that the

defendants and their co-conspirators received the proceeds checks

and deposited theminto or cashed them agai nst accounts that they

controlled, including but not
i n paragraph 7 above,

9. It was further
depositing the proceeds checks,

conspirators engaged in financi al

proceeds, including cash w thdrawal s,

and t he def endants’

part of the conspiracy that,

per sona

l[imted to the accounts set forth
accounts.
after
t he defendants and their co-
transactions invol ving these

transfers to other

accounts, and checks made out to entities they controlled, which

were designed in whole and in part to concea

-16-
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def endants’ ownership and control of those proceeds.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1956( h) .
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COUNT SEVEN

(Bank Fraud)
1. Paragraphs 3, 6, 10, 11, and 13 of Count One are re-
al | eged and i ncorporated herein.
2. At all tinmes relevant to Count Seven of this
| ndi ct nment :

a. Def endant ANTHONY ASCOLESE was a resident of Ccean
County, New Jersey.

b. Def endant GLENN GElI SCHEN was a resident of Ocean
County, New Jersey.

C. T.R was the girlfriend of defendant SHAWN P
STREBERGER, and resided with defendant SHAWN P. STREBERGER in
Monnmout h County, New Jersey.

d. D.D. resided in Monmouth County, New Jersey, and
was a nei ghbor and acquai ntance of defendant JOHN V. COTONA and
co-conspirator V.G

e. M C. resided in Monnmouth County, New Jersey, and
was an acquai ntance of defendant SHAWN P. STREBERCGER and co-
conspirator T.R

f. Commerce Bank, N. A (“Commerce”), was a financi al
institution, as that termis defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 20.

g. A “bad check” is a check that will be dishonored
by the financial institution on which it is drawn, because

adequate funds are not available in the account on which it is
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drawn, because the account hol der has stopped paynent on the
check, or for some other reason.

3. Fromin or about May 2005, to in or about Cctober 2005,
in Monmouth County, in the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere,
t he def endants,

JOHN V. COTONA
a/ k/'a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/'a “John Bruno,”
RALPH A. STAFFA,
SHAWN P. STREBERGER
ANTHONY ASCOLESE, and
GLENN GEI SCHEN
did knowingly and wilfully execute a schene and artifice to
def raud Conmerce of approxi mately $168, 150, and obtai n noneys,
funds, and assets owned by and under the custody and control of
Commerce, by means of nmaterially fal se and fraudul ent pretenses,

representations, and prom ses, as set forth nore fully bel ow

Object of the Schene and Artifice to Defraud

4. It was the object of the schene and artifice to defraud
for the defendants to obtain noney from Comerce by depositing
bad checks into accounts that they controlled at Commrerce, and
then withdrawi ng the proceeds of those bad checks before Comrerce
| earned that the checks were di shonored by the financial
institutions on which they were drawn.

Means and Met hods of the Conspiracy

5. Anmong t he means and net hods enpl oyed by the defendants
to carry out the schene and artifice to defraud and effect its

unl awf ul object were those set forth in Paragraphs 6 through 13
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bel ow.

6. It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that
def endant JOHN V. COTONA controlled accounts at Conmerce in the
names of “Cceanside Equities,” “Perfect Touch Collision Center,”
and V.G

7. It was further part of the schene and artifice to
defraud that defendant JOHN V. COTONA obtai ned bad checks from
various sources, including MM, N V., Mtro Media G oup, and
State Farm

8. It was further part of the schenme and artifice to
defraud that defendant JOHN V. COTONA provi ded bad checks to
def endant s RALPH STAFFA and ANTHONY ASCOLESE, who deposited those
bad checks into the Cceansi de Equities account at Commer ce.

9. It was further part of the schene and artifice to
defraud that defendant JOHN V. COTONA personal |y deposited bad
checks into the Perfect Touch Collision Center and V.G accounts
at Commer ce.

10. It was further part of the schene and artifice to
defraud that defendant ANTHONY ASCOLESE deposited bad checks,
drawn on an account in the name of defendant RALPH A. STAFFA,
into an account at Commerce in the nanme of defendant GLENN
CEl SCHEN

11. It was further part of the schene and artifice to
defraud that defendant JOHN V. COTONA, knowing that it was

Commerce’s policy to make the proceeds of deposited checks
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i medi ately available to its custonmers, wthdrew, and caused

def endants RALPH A. STAFFA, SHAWN P. STREBERGER, ANTHONY
ASCCLESE, and GLENN GElI SCHEN, as well as T.R, D.D., and MC., to
wi t hdraw, the proceeds of bad checks fromthe Cceanside Equities
and Perfect Touch Collision Center accounts at Commerce, before
Commerce | earned that these bad checks had been di shonored.

12. It was further part of the schene and artifice to
defraud that defendant GLENN GEl SCHEN wi t hdrew t he proceeds of
bad checks fromthe account in his nane at Commerce, before
Commerce | earned that the checks had been di shonored by defendant
RALPH A. STAFFA's financial institution.

13. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
def endants and their co-conspirators conducted the foll ow ng
transacti ons at Commerce branches in New Jersey:

The Oceansi de Equities Account

a. On or about June 2, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $18,950, drawn on an account of MM, into
t he Cceansi de Equities account.

b. On or about June 2, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCOLESE deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $19, 850, drawn on an account of MM, into
t he Cceansi de Equities account.

C. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in

Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant SHAWN STREBERCER cashed a check
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in the amount of $9,850, drawn on the Cceanside Equities account.

d. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA cashed a check in
t he anpbunt of $9, 775, drawn on the Cceansi de Equities account.

e. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Tinton Falls, New Jersey, T.R negotiated a check in the anount
of $9, 750, drawn on the Cceanside Equities account, and received
$4,875 in cash, and an official Conmerce check in the anount of
$4, 875.

f. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCOLESE deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $19, 800, drawn on an account of MM, into
t he Cceansi de Equities account.

g. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
M ddl et omn, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA cashed a check in
t he anpbunt of $9,500 drawn on the COceanside Equities account.

h. On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA cashed a check in
t he anpbunt of $2,500, drawn on the Cceansi de Equities account.

i On or about June 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
West Long Branch, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCOLESE
deposited a bad check in the amobunt of $19, 800, drawn on an
account of MM, into the Cceanside Equities account.

J - On or about June 4, 2005, at a Commerce branch in

Mar | bor o, New Jersey, D.D. cashed a check in the anount of
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$9, 875, drawn on the Cceanside Equities account.

k. On or about June 4, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Fai r Haven, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA cashed a check in
t he anpbunt of $9, 775, drawn on the Cceansi de Equities account.

l. On or about June 4, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Fai r Haven, New Jersey, T.R cashed the official Comrerce check
in the amount of $4,875, that was issued to T.R on or about June
3, 2005.

m On or about June 5, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
M ddl et own, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA wi t hdrew $550
fromthe Cceanside Equities account.

n. On or about June 6, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $19,507, drawn on an account of MM, into
t he Cceanside Equities account.

0. On or about June 6, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Tinton Falls, New Jersey, an unidentified individual deposited a
bad check in the amount of $19,111, drawn on an account of MM,
into the Cceansi de Equities account.

p. On or about June 7, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant RALPH STAFFA cashed a check in
t he anpunt of $9, 887, drawn on the Cceansi de Equities account.

g. On or about June 7, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant SHAWN STREBERCER cashed a check

in the amount of $9,850, drawn on the Cceanside Equities account.
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r. On or about June 7, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Fai r Haven, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCCLESE cashed a check
in the amount of $9, 790, drawn on the Cceansi de Equities account.
S. On or about June 7, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
M ddl et omn, New Jersey, T.R cashed a check in the anmount of
$9, 950, drawn on the Cceanside Equities account.

The V.G Checki ng Account

t. On or about May 27, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Mar | boro, New Jersey, V.G opened a checki ng account.

u. On or about June 10, 2005, at a Conmerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $19, 800, drawn on an account of N. V., into
the V.G checking account at Commer ce.

V. On or about June 10, 2005, at a Conmerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA deposited a bad
check in the anpbunt of $19, 750, drawn on an account of N. V., into
the V.G checking account at Commer ce.

W. On or about June 23, 2005, at a Conmerce branch in
Mar | boro, New Jersey, V.G wthdrew $419.31 fromthe V.G
checki ng account .

The Perfect Touch Collision Center Account

X. On or about June 17, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA deposited a bad
check in the amount of $19, 575, drawn on an account of “Metro

Media Group,” into the Perfect Touch Collision account.
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y. On or about June 17, 2005, at a Conmmerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA deposited two bad
checks, one in the anount of $19, 425, drawn on an account of
“Metro Media Group,” and one in the anmount of $17,607.12, drawn
on an account of State Farm into the Perfect Touch Collision
account .

z. On or about June 18, 2005, at a Conmerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, M C. cashed a check in the anmount of
$9, 925, drawn on the Perfect Touch Collision account.

aa. On or about June 18, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Red Bank, New Jersey, defendant JOHN V. COTONA cashed a check in
t he amount of $9,775, drawn on the Perfect Touch Collision
account .

bb. On or about June 18, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
M ddl et omn, New Jersey, M C. cashed a check in the anmount of
$9, 880, drawn on the Perfect Touch Collision account.

cc. On or about June 18, 2005, at a Commerce branch in
Eat ont own, New Jersey, defendant GLENN G ESCHEN cashed a check in
t he amount of $9,950, drawn on the Perfect Touch Collision
account .

dd. On or about June 19, 2005, an unknown i ndi vi dual
wi t hdrew $6, 250 from the Perfect Touch Collision account.

The d enn Gei schen Account

ee. On or about August 12, 2005, at a Comrerce branch

i n Eatontown, New Jersey, defendant GLENN GEl SCHEN opened a
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per sonal checki ng account.

ff. On or about Cctober 3, 2005, at a Commerce branch
in Tons River, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCOLESE deposited a
bad check in the amount of $9,500, drawn on the account of
def endant RALPH STAFFA, into the Commerce account of defendant
GLENN CGElI SCHEN

gg. On or about Cctober 3, 2005, at a Comrerce branch
in Tinton Falls, New Jersey, an unidentified individual deposited
a bad check in the anount of $9,875, drawn on the account of
def endant RALPH STAFFA, into the Commerce account of defendant
GLENN CGElI SCHEN

hh. On or about October 3, 2005, at a Conmerce branch
in West Long Branch, New Jersey, defendant ANTHONY ASCCLESE
deposited a bad check in the anount of $18, 745, drawn on the
account of defendant RALPH STAFFA, into the Commerce account of
def endant GLENN GElI SCHEN

ii. On or about October 5, 2005, at a Conmerce branch
i n Eatontown, New Jersey, defendant GLENN GEl SCHEN wi t hdr ew
$6, 700 from his account at Commrer ce.

jj. On or about COctober 5, 2005, at a Commerce branch
in Brick, New Jersey, defendant GLENN GEl SCHEN wi t hdrew $6, 500
from his account at Conmerce.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1344

and 2.
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COUNTS El GHT THROUGH TEN

(Structuring of Monetary Transactions)
1. Par agraph 3 of Count One, and paragraph 6(a)of Count
Six, are re-alleged and incorporated herein.
2. At all tinmes relevant to Counts Ei ght through Ten of
this Indictnment:

a. Comrerce Bank, N A (“Commerce”) was a donestic
financial institution within the nmeaning of Title 31, United
States Code, Section 5313(a), and Title 31, Code of Federal
Regul ati ons, Sections 103.11 and 103. 22(a).

b. Title 31, United States Code, Section 5313(a), and
Title 31, Code of Federal Regul ations, Section 103.22(a),
required that financial institutions file Currency Transaction
Reports of each deposit, w thdrawal, exchange of currency or
ot her payment and transfer, by, through, or to such financi al
institution that involved a transaction in currency of nore than
$10, 000.

3. On or about the dates set forth below, in Mnnouth
County, in the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere, the
def endant ,
JOHN V. COTONA
a/ k/'a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/'a “John Bruno,”
for the purpose of evading the reporting requirenents of Title

31, United States Code, Section 5313(a) with respect to such
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transacti ons,

attenpted to structure and assi st

with a donestic financial

i nstitut

in structuring,

i on,

knowi ngly structured, assisted in structuring, and

transacti ons

nanmel y Commerce, by

causing United States currency to be deposited and withdrawn in

anmount s of

| ess than $10, 000,

i ncluding the foll ow ng:

Count Dat e Account Transaction Anmount
8 01/ 18/ 2005 | Bl ue Point Cash deposit $7, 500
Equities
01/ 18/ 2005 | Ccean Side Cash deposit $9, 700
Equities
01/ 18/ 2005 | Anerican Cash deposit $9, 800
Advant age
01/ 18/ 2005 | Anotoc Realty | Cash deposit $9, 800
9 06/ 03/ 2005 | Ccean Side Cashed check $9, 850
Equities # 1024
06/ 03/ 2005 Cashed check |$9,775
# 1025
06/ 03/ 2005 Cashed check |$9, 750
# 1023
06/ 03/ 2005 Cashed check | $9, 500
# 1026
06/ 03/ 2005 Cashed check |$2,500
# 1027
06/ 04/ 2005 Cashed check |$9, 875
# 1028
06/ 04/ 2005 Cashed check |$9,775
# 1029
06/ 07/ 2005 Cashed check [ $9, 887
# 1031
06/ 07/ 2005 Cashed check | $9, 850
# 1034
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06/ 07/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 790
# 1032

06/ 07/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 950
# 1042

10 06/ 18/ 2005 | Perfect Touch | Cashed check $9, 925
Col li sion # 1046

06/ 18/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 775
# 1049

06/ 18/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 880
# 1045

06/ 18/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 850
# 1052

06/ 18/ 2005 Cashed check $9, 950
# 1053

06/ 19/ 2005 Cash $6, 250

W t hdr awal

4. Def endant JOHN V. COTONA comm tted these acts of
structuring as part of a pattern of illegal activity involving
nore than $100,000.00 in a 12-nonth peri od.

In violation of Title 31, United States Code, Sections
5324(a)(3) and 5324(d)(2); and Title 18, United States Code,

Section 2.
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COUNT ELEVEN

(Wtness Tanpering)

1. Paragraphs 3 and 11 of Count One are re-alleged and
i ncor porated herein.

2. At all times relevant hereto, U D. was the owner of the
property with an address of 74 Wall ace Street, Red Bank, New
Jersey.

3. I n or about March 2006, in Monnouth County, in the
District of New Jersey, and el sewhere, the defendants,

JOHN V. COTONA

a/ k/'a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/'a “John Bruno,” and

VI NCENZA G RONE
did knowi ngly and corruptly persuade and attenpt to persuade
UD, with the intent to influence, delay, and prevent the
testinmony of U D. in an official proceeding, and to hinder,
del ay, and prevent U D. fromcomunicating to a | aw enforcenent
of ficer and judge of the United States information relating to
t he comm ssion and possi bl e conm ssion of certain federal
of fenses, nanely mail fraud, contrary to Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1341, and bank fraud, contrary to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1344.

Al inviolation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1512(b) (1), 1512(b)(3), and 2.
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CRIM NAL FORFEI TURE ALLEGATI ON

1. The Grand Jury reall eges and i ncorporates by reference
the allegations set forth in Counts Six and Eight of this
I ndi ctment for the purpose of noticing forfeiture pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1l), and Title 31,
United States Code, Section 5317(c)(1).
2. As a result of the offenses charged in Counts Six and
Nine of this Indictnent, the Governnent will seek forfeiture from
t he def endant,
JOHN V. COTONA
a/ k/'a “John Cotone,”
a/ k/a “John Bruno,”
in accordance with: (1) Title 18, United States Code, Section
981(a)(1), of all property, real and personal, involved in the
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h), set
forth in Count Six, and all property traceable to such property;
and (2) Title 31, United States Code, Section 5317(c)(1), of al
property, real and personal, involved in the violation of Title
31, United States Code, Section 5324(a)(3) and 5324(d)(2), set
forth in Count Eight, and all property traceable thereto,
including but not limted to the foll ow ng:
(a). a sumof noney equal to approximtely $1, 028, 795
in United States currency, representing the anmount of noney

involved in the offense set forth in Count Six; and

(b). one (1) Mars Red 2005 Mercedes-Benz SL500R, New

-31-



Jersey license plate SZF34C, VI N WDBSK75F75F094602, representing
property traceable to noney involved in the offense set forth in
Count Ei ght.
3. | f any of the above-described forfeitable property, as

a result of any act or om ssion of defendant JOHN V. COTONA

(a). cannot be | ocated upon the exercise of due
di li gence;

(b). has been transferred or sold to, or deposited
with, athird party;

(c). has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the
court;

(d). has been substantially dimnished in value; or

(e). has been conm ngled with other property which
cannot be divided without difficulty; it is the intent of the
United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section
853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section
982(b) (1), and Title 31, United States Code, Section
5317(c)(1)(B), to seek forfeiture of any other property of
def endant JOHN V. COTONA up to the value of the forfeitable
property descri bed above.

A TRUE BI LL

FOREPERSON

CHRI STOPHER J. CHRI STI E
United States Attorney
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